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Los Angel es, California;, Wdnesday, February 20, 2019

10: 51 a. m

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Good nor ni ng once
again, and welconme to the Ofice of Tax Appeal. W're
opening the record in the appeal of Andrej Mi horn and
Angelita Bill man Mai horn

MRS. MAIHORN: It's Angelita.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Angelita -- ny
apol ogi es --

MRS. MAIHORN: It's all right.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG -- Bill man
Mai horn before the Ofice of Tax Appeals. The Case No. is
18032523, and this hearing is being convened in
Los Angel es on February 20th, 2019. The tine is
10: 51 a.m

Today's case is being heard by a panel of three
judges. |I'mthe lead judge. M nane is Nguyen Dang for
pur poses of conducting this hearing, but all three of us
will participate in issuing a decision. Al so on panel
with me today is Judges Daniel Cho and Linda Cheng.

W1l the parties please introduce thenselves for
the record, beginning with the Appellant.

MRS. MAIHORN: |'m Angel a Bill man Mai horn.

MR MAIHORN: And Andrej Mai horn.
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ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG And for the
Franchi se Tax Board?

MR KOMLCYK: David Kowal cyk for Franchise Tax
Boar d.

M5. MONSNI ER Marguerite Msnier for Franchise
Tax Board.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG.  Thank you. The
i ssue | have before us today is whether abatenent of the
noti ce and demand penalty for 2015 is warranted due to
reasonabl e cause and the absence of w llful neglect.

Does that sound correct to you, appellants?

MRS. MAI HORN:  Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Franchi se Tax
Boar d?

MR KOMLCYK: Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Thank you. Prior
to this hearing, the parties stated that they woul d be
subm tting as evidence as exhibits previously attached to
their briefs, which have al ready been exchanged between
parties. W conbined that into electronic files that was
sent to both parties.

Appel lant, did you have a chance to revi ew that
el ectroni c docunent ?

MRS. MAI HORN:  Yes.

MR, MAIHORN: | think so, yeah.
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ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Are there any
objections to admtting that?

MRS. MAI HORN:  No.

MR MAI HORN:  No.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Franchi se Tax
Board, |'m assum ng you al so received a copy of that file?

MR, KOMLCYK: Correct.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  And you had a
chance to review it?

MR, KOMLCYK: Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG No obj ections?

MR. KOWMALCYK: No objections.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Thank you
Al so today Appellants brought in new exhibits. [|'m not
quite certain what the purpose of these exhibits are.
Wul d you m nd explaining just briefly?

MR, MAIHORN: So the one is basically
highlighting -- so we get the daily notification from
USPS, what mail is comng --

MRS. MAI HORN:  To our house.

MR MAIHORN: -- to our house, our mmil box. So
last night | literally scanned the past few weeks, and I
basically just printout a few sanples of mail that was
scanned for our address that arrived, actually. That was

atotally wong address, totally different nei ghborhood,
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totally different part of the city. And funny enough
actually, inportant tax return docunents for sone fol ks as
sone evidence. | think | submtted with the original file
a different exanple. |In the beginning it was just
showcasi ng, just for exanple, the |last few weeks,

actual ly.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  So every item on
this list are exanples of mail that you received from
ot her --

MRS. MAIHORN: OCh, no. That's sonebody he's
tal ki ng about .

MR MAITHORN: Onh, this one. That's the --

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Just the
first one.

MRS. MAIHORN: That's the --

MR. MAIHORN: And this one here, | just nade a
l[ist of itenms that we need to collect in order to file our
taxes. And since --

MRS. MAIHORN: Well, yeah. That's just a
detailed |list because I'Il bring that up in just a couple
of m nutes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay.

MR MAIHORN: And I think we highlighted that in
our --

MRS. MAIHORN: It's just nore specific.
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MR MAIHORN: -- appeal as well.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. |If you
could, please talk one at tine for the stenographer.

MRS. MAIHORN: |I'msorry. |'msorry.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. And just
to confirm the remaining itens on this list are itens you
that you need to gather in order to prepare your tax
return?

MRS. MAI HORN: Correct.

MR MAI HORN:  Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Thank you
Franchi se Tax Board, are there any objections to admtting
this into evidence?

MR. KOWALCYK: No objections.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG Ckay. Wth no
objection, we will be -- the electronic file that has been
sent to the parties will now be admtted into the record
as well as the evidence that Appellants have now brought
today to the hearing.

(Al evidence submtted for this

hearing is received in evidence by

the Adm nistrative Law Judge.)***

If you're ready to begin, | can go head and swear
you in.

MRS. MAI HORN:  Sur e.
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ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG |'Il1 just do bot
of you at the sanme tine, if you don't mnd standi ng.

MRS. MAI HORN:  Okay.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Rai se your ri ght

hand.

ANGELI TA Bl LLMAN NAI HORN

produced as a witness by and on behalf of herself, and
havi ng been first duly sworn by the Hearing O ficer, was

exam ned and testified as foll ows:

ANDREJ MAI HORN

produced as a witness by and on behalf of hinself, and
havi ng been first duly sworn by the Hearing O ficer, was

exam ned and testified as foll ows:

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Thank you. You

h

may be seated. Just to rem nd you again that you have 20

m nutes for your testinony for both of you together.
Ms. Mai horn | believe you' re going to begin?

MRS. MAI HORN:  Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. So

whenever you're ready, go ahead.

MRS. MAIHORN: Ckay. This is alittle free form

It's not necessarily all witten out. But we feel the
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reason that we are here because on docunents, or just by
what ever we've witten in a small paragraph, | wasn't able
to establish that we have a reasonabl e reason why we
didn't get -- we failed to have reasonabl e cause of why we
didn't respond to the State requests for our taxes, and so

that's why we're here.

And in that reasonabl e anmount for me neans, |ike,
there's roomfor sone human decisions. It's not
necessarily a black or white thing. It doesn't apply to

every single person and every single household, and every
single, you know, place. It's nore of wow. This is a
situati on where we as judges have to decide, |ike, yeah,
could see how that could be a real problemand nmaybe all ow
some humanness in this system

| don't see it as necessarily being just a cut
and dry yes or no. And so our problemis that we're
fortunate enough to live up in the hills. And in the
hills it's like being in the hills. You don't always get
the right mail delivered to you. You often get other
people's mail delivered to you.

In fact, | was telling himl| should have held on
it because just three day ago | had three pieces of nai
that came in our mail that were for soneone else, and | --
it was on the staircase for a couple of days or so. |

guess it was nore than three days ago. It was three days

11
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ago | returned it.

It was laying, and | was |ike, you know what ?
really need to stick this outside for our mail dude. So
stick it outside and put the little red flag up. One of
those things was different fromthis one, but it said
"I nmportant Tax Docunent."” It was for sonebody el se. So
sent it back to our mailman so he could hopefully get it
to where it goes.

But this is a conmon occurrence for us, and
that's fine. What are ny choices as a civilian who has
got a, you know, wonky mail systen? Well, | could
conpl ain, which we have. It doesn't really do anything
‘cause it's not necessarily our mailman as you can tel
t he docunents here. This is presorted at the post offic
So you just kind of deal with it.

I f you got something you know that's going to
come to you, you tell themuse FedEx; get a certified
mai | ; use UPS. Do whatever you need to do if you really
need it to get to us. Fine. Oher than that, like, the
W2's in this whole long list of things that |I have to
coll ect every year, it takes a while 'cause half of this
stuff gets |ost.

| have to contact the studios. And | have to

contact all those different places nost of the tine to

by

e.

have themresend it to us, and sonetines resend it again.
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And it's just what it is. It is a pain? Yes. But what
are ny options? | could try to, you know, get a post
of fi ce box and have sone of the stuff delivered there, but
we had a post office box at our other house, and it
doesn't necessarily nmean that everything is going to get
into that. That's not a guarantee.

It's also not ny responsibility to fork out noney
in addition to paying taxes, which provide for the, you
know, USPS. Well, it's up to -- | shouldn't have to pay
several hundred dollars nmonth just to try to maybe get a
few nore pieces if it's going to a P.O Box. And then you
have to also deal with that little inconveni ence of when
you can go pick that up. That's a whole other ball of
yarn.

The bottomline is we work with it. W just deal
with it. And when we find that there's an issue, we fix
it. In this case, unfortunately, I don't know. One of
t hese guys seens to cone to our place all the tine. Al
the time. And we're wondering if maybe we have the sane
probl em where our stuff just gets sent all the tinme -- |
mean not ever single tinme, but often -- to this one
specific thing like this guy's get sent to ours.

'Cause, like, they're sort of simlar addresses,
but not really 'cause it's actually in Inglewbod, which is

nowhere near our house. |It's not |ike a couple of houses

13
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down. So | don't know why we didn't receive the first and
second thing fromthe IRS, but | can tell you everything
that we've ever done and actually received we've acted

i medi ately on.

And as soon as we got the one that said this is
what' s happening, we act imediately on it. And | think
what's -- what's frustrating here is that they -- they
tell us that -- that we didn't act as ordinary intelligent
and prudent busi ness persons would have -- woul d have
done, which I don't know what you personally woul d have
done if the same situation happened to you.

It's just you deal with what you have and you do
the best to make up for it. W -- we always overpay our
t axes because we know this is a problem and it takes us
time to go and collect all the stuff fromthe m ssing
pi eces. Sonmetines it takes nonths to get the stuff from
people. So we always over pay our taxes always every
year .

And we have one of our exhibits here that says
just from 2009, every single year from 2009 we over pay
our taxes. W file themso that we have a grace period of
time where we can go and collect all the stuff we need,
and then we'll take the noney back fromthe state at that
point. Now, do we get -- do we get any bonus for letting

the State sitting on our noney? O course not.

14
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ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Just to interrupt

you for one second. That docunent you just pointed to --

MRS. MAI HORN: Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG Is that currently

in the exhibit?
MRS. MAI HORN:  Yeah. We submitted.

MR MAIHORN: W send it all to O audia Lopez.

MRS. MAIHORN: And we have -- we al so have, I|ike,

the actual returns to back up these nunbers. This is just

a quick -- quick thing for you guys.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ch, okay. Thank

you.

MRS. MAIHORN: So you can see every year we over

pay intentionally, and we don't get anything for that.

There's no bonus brownie points. But this year, you know,

and for the record, 1'd also like to say ID got stolen;

my

tax I D or whatever. Now, maybe it was out of ny mail box,

maybe it wasn't. | don't know. We did change and got

what an ordinary intelligent businessperson wuld do, and

got a | ocked nmail box.

But instead now, every year | have to get an ID

for -- not ny social security nunber -- an additiona
taxpayer ID. A couple of tinmes that's not gotten to us

because it cones by mail. So then | have to track that

down. And it's annoying, but it is what it is. And so we
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over pay our taxes every year just to nake sure that we'l]|
be getting a return and that we do not owe the state ever,
ever, ever.

Now this is a year where we didn't owe the State
in 2015, again. And yet they said, "Well, they contacted
us because they figured that we did." And we didn't
respond so then they decided they were going to tax us
because -- and it turns out we still didn't owe them as
al ways. M husband's job hasn't changed. There's nothing
new t hat had changed. There's absolutely zero reason to
think that we would suddenly owe them and we didn't owe
t hem

But then they said, "Well, we're gonna keep that
noney anyway because we tried to contact you and tell you

that you should do your taxes, and we're gonna keep that

noney." | don't know. To nme this seens |ike not really,
really reasonable or fair. | nmean, it's -- we always --
there's no -- if we have to send in our mail to the

governnment, whether it's the State or the IRS, we have to
certify it. If it's really inportant, we have to nake
sure that there is something that says it's certified. W
sent it to you. Period.

If the State or the IRS sends sonething to us and
we just don't get it, well, they're going to tax us and

take our noney that we overpaid to them anyway. So

16
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they're going to keep it. They don't certify it to us.
They don't make sure it arrived and was signed for. |
under stand that maybe one, they nailed the first one. But
by second one if they don't hear fromus, send us a
certified thing that says you actually received it and you
ignored it. W have proof that you ignored it. Then, you
know, fine.

When we got the one that we did get, we acted
i mediately on it, and we filed our taxes and we got --
woul d have gotten the noney back. But then they decided,
no we're just going to keep what we woul d have been owed
you. Ever never has that ever happened to us before. W
woul d have no reason to be looking for a letter that we
owed taxes. Again, nothing changed with ny husband's
status or business or job. Nothing changed.

So we woul dn't know to be | ooking for, oh,

they're going to cone after us. 1t's been over a decade
that we've done this. So in conclusion, I'mgoing to turn
it over to nmy husband. But | just feel like thisis a
situation where reasonable -- this is not a reasonable
situation.

We do not have a reasonable mail delivery
service, but we are reasonabl e taxpayers who always try
to, in fact, nmake up for our unreasonable mail situation

by over paying every year just to make sure we don't get

17
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in trouble.

And this cones along, and then we quickly when
they say -- when we get the thing that says you got to
pay. W want your taxes now. W give them our taxes that
we owe, they still cone back to us and say we're going to
keep what we owe you -- what we owe you because -- well,
we're just going to keep it.

| just don't see this as being fair or right.

It's a human decision. [It's not sonething that you can
actually sit there and say in a | aw book, well, we sent
the two pieces of mail, especially when they didn't

certify themin any way, shape, or form They can't

guarantee that they actually got to us. And then they

t ake noney on top of it. It's one thing if -- | just --
any way. |'Il leave it there. |'m done.

MR MAIHORN: All right. I'mgoing to be a
little bit nore specific. | guess --

MRS. MAIHORN: He's CGerman. That's why.

MR MAITHORN: -- that's why | left the opening to
her. | nmean, obviously, the mail issue is the main
concern that we have, and the main reason why. That's
kind of why we try to |layout, therefore, the reasonable
cause. | nean, it's also a conbination of other things
that play a role, right.

So we filed, | think, as part of the prehearing.

18
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We filed basically the overview, and we typically file the
taxes. Basically, these are the dates since we file
jointly, and since we use the tax accountant, actually for
filing. W have a tax accountant that nme and ny wi fe have
been using, basically, for 25 years or so.

So you'll see inthelist -- it's consistently
late. | nmean, it's up to, you know, two years late pretty
much consistently. So we didn't file the taxes within the
sane year. W never had fines. W never had a penalty
before. So our assunption was -- and that was the
confirmati on we got fromour tax accountant as well that
as long as you owe. And | understand that m ght not be
the case where stuff is witten out differently, but the
assunption is as long as you don't owe, you don't have to
file.

So the conbination of dealing with an issue of
the mail service, getting the material together, having
your life of two small kids, a busy of schedule that |
have for travel and stuff, filing within, like, until
April 15, by now we don't know. It's just -- it was never
a pressure to us based on our filing history as well,
right.

So also for like nost of the cases, you know, we
use electronic comunication. | nean we use it for this

case, right. W were able to submt certain things |like

19
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e-mail. You know, you can get a confirmation for that.
So I nean, we are still dealing with a pretty antiquated
systemfor, like, pretty inportant fornms of docunentation

In addition, you see the Iist we submtted here.
There are quite a few docunents that we need to submt
j ust because Angi e, she was an actress before. So she
has -- basically she still gets residual checks from al
the different studios. So we have to make sure before we
actually can file and then basically file the tax return
that we have all the docunents in place.

We cannot do a tenporary filing and then nmake an
adj ust rent because we don't have the docunents. W asked
our tax accountant, but it's not really an option. So |
understand that there was mail sent out that we haven't
seen, we haven't received. Watever happened there, we
got the notification on Septenber 20th that we actually
did receive.

Once | received that, | had already highlighted
the penalties and everything. | literally -- literally I
was on a business trip. R ght after | took that with ne
and cal |l ed the Franchi se Tax Board basically, inmmediately.
So that should be a call on record that we call ed
imediately trying to understand the situation. And based
on the conversation, the way it went it was |ike us not

under st andi ng what the situation was and how it led to

20
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t hat situation.

Because we haven't received the mail and | think
it -- hopefully it's on record based on that call. So
based on the conversation that we had, it was kept open.
If there was a penalty or not at the end, we basically
filed the report. W nade sure we had all the docunents
in place and we filed the report.

What | have done is also -- based on the response
we got fromthe FTB, | just want to go through the
different bullet points and how they have been addressed
in case of the -- in context of this reasonable call --
cost .

It was saying here, "Moreover, ordinarily
intelligent and prudent persons woul d have used a
different address or P.O Box if the new mail delivering
to that location is unreliable.”

So the challenge that we see here is A, we had a
P.O Box and it arrived via carrier. W had a P.O Box
there. The experience was not nuch better to be honest.
So |l don't think it's the issue. |If you |look at this,
this is mail -- it doesn't state -- ours got to sonmewhere
el se. That just neans that sonmeone else's mail got to us.

Wi ch also neans if | have a different address,
it doesn't prove that that woul d change the problem

right? Because clearly this guy here didn't get a tax

21
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docunents even though he's living in Inglewod, which is
i ke far enough fromus to be not even close. The address
doesn't even resenble our address. Like, we are 1931
Sunset Plaza Drive. This one is 1931 West 91th Pl ace.

So it's not even close fromthat perspective. So
| don't see that we -- that this applies to have a
di fferent address that woul d necessarily fix the issue.
And that's just fromthe |ast few weeks, actually, that I
just went through.

The next statenent was, "Odinarily intelligent
and prudent busi ness persons woul d not depend on an
unreliable mail service for sending or receiving inportant
docunments.” And that's exactly true. M issue, and ny
wife already stated is if we know that docunents are
com ng or we know that a check is com ng, we nmake sure we
understand that this is comng. W get a tracking nunber.
We get it certified. W use a different service.

We expect the sane fromthe ordinary intelligent
and prudent business person fromthe FTB at the end. |If
there are inportant tax docunents that they need to be
delivered, | expect the same fromthe other party. Wich
is not the case here because, certainly the other party is
relying on the system you know. So | don't understand
why it's a one-sided topic for this. For really inportant

stuff, we use other services that we need.
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The next one was, "Ordinarily intelligent and
prudent business persons al so woul d have contacted FTB if
t hey knew they nmay receive a demand for tax return.”

The problemis that we have now been penalized.
We now add a filing, so it's like |I would not proactively
ask or necessarily expect that there would be a demand for
tax return because it was not an issue before. W haven't
paid penalties. So that statenment doesn't apply at al
ei t her.

And then finally it says, "Finally, ordinarily
intelligent and prudent business persons woul d not have

wai ted over six nonths to file a tax return in response to

a demand. "

So first of all, exactly. | would not have
waited for six nonths. [It's absolutely the case. The
first time | got the mail into the box, which is

Septenber 20th, | made that call to followup on the
issue. | would have not -- ny wife obviously knows ne,
but I'mlike everything that's regarding finances, I'm
very adamant about it.

So if we would have gotten the mail, we would
have reacted. So we woul d have not have waited for six
nonths. And again, based on the history of filing and the
material that we need to get, yeah, we are not filing

within six nmonths until the tax year is over.
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So again as ny wife said also, it's like we are
not avoi di ng paying taxes. You know, | had the

opportunity. The I RS asked ne to change the -- whatever

you call it -- dependabl e nunber, the dependents or
what ever, the credits. | don't want to get close to break
even. | want to keep it as it is. | know | don't owe. |

don't have an issue with filing returns, et cetera.
And then at |ast but not at least, | |look for fun

last night, really, on the statistics of USPS. It's

online publicly available. | nean, it's not a surprise,
but the assunptions are out there. It's not an unconmon
thing. Based on 200 billion deliveries that are nade by

USPS, 5.5 billion, which is around 3 percent, are
undel i vered as addressed.

There are different things that happen. 1.3
billion are returned to sender. 2 billion are discarded,
and the rest are forwarded. But it's not necessarily an
absol utely uncommon issue, you know, for this delivery
system So | would really like, based on the definitions
of reasonabl e cause and in our situation, | think we have
a very valid point. And we do understand certain things
are different, obviously. W do understand that, you
know, we want to file earlier now based on what happened
her e.

We'|l certainly do it. Even though, |ike, |ast
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year all docunments together we file by Cctober. But
that's totally fine as long as we don't owe.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Does that clue
your presentation.

MRS. MAI HORN:  Yeah, the other thing, | nean,
it's just a side note. | don't quite understand. You
know, the penalty was applied as 25 percent of the taxes
that you -- the calculated taxes that you -- the
cal cul ated taxes of the tax year, which was $10,130. But
then we prepaid basically as part of the paychecks. W
paid $13,000 -- whatever it was already.

So I don't get the concept of those penalties
because we clearly overpaid than what they are based on of
the calculation. So | nmean, that's a different topic.
mean, again, that's the other thing. | mean, you know, we
are a famly four with small kids. For us it's not --
that's why we are here. W want to go through the
process. For us it's a big deal |osing $2,500, you know,
especially living in LA. So for us it's not -- | just
cannot just let it go, you know. And it is a big deal.

And so we are -- we have regular jobs. You know,
we pay our taxes. We do everything that we do, and so
hopefully the State of California sees that.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Thank you. Is

that --
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MRS. MAI HORN:  Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Thank you
Before | give Franchise Tax Board an opportunity to cross,
| just had one small clarification. You had nentioned,
Ms. Mai horn, a P.O Box that you had set up?

MR. MAIHORN: Ch, we have a small cabin in Lake
Arrowhead, and you have -- you can't get mail to the
house. So you have to have a P.O Box. And we've had a
nightmare with that, because half of the stuff they won't
deliver to P.O Box. And if you do get stuff out of the
P.O Box, you can only get it at certain hours.

And if you don't check it every two nonths -- so
if we go to Europe -- because he's German -- for a couple
of nonths, then you | ose your P.O Box, period, if soneone
doesn't check it. It's a nightmare. But we were trying
to consider would that nmake a difference. The answer is a
resounding no. And as you can see -- what he was saying.

MR. MAI HORN:  Yeah. The other -- we live in the
hills in a small rental place. For us getting a P.O Box,
the nearest P.O. Ofice is literally about a 20-m nute
drive for us to go up and down the hill. | work from
hone.

MRS. MAITHORN: It still doesn't change anyt hing.

MR MAIHORN: It's inconvenience, right. So for

us basically a roundtrip is 40 mnutes. So like, it's
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al so not optinmal from a business perspective too.
MRS. MAIHORN: R ght. And as we were saying,
t hese people all don't have P.O Boxes, and they are

getting their mail delivered to our house. So should

everyone go out and get a P.O Box? And will that change

anything? O wll we all just get our stuff at different

P. O Boxes?

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG No. Thank you
| just wanted to make sure that P.O Box -- that address
had nothing to do with the notices that were sent to you

MRS. MAIHORN:  No, no. That has nothing to do
with this.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  You're just
gi ving an exanpl e.

MR MAIHORN: Yes. R ght. W have personal

experience of P.O Boxes, and, you know. So | think we're

relatively intelligent and, you know, prudent business
peopl e-ish. So, you know, that doesn't work.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Thank you

Franchi se Tax Board you can -- if you would |like to cross,

you may at this tine.

MR. KOMLCYK: | have no questions.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Pane
nmenber s?

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHO  Yeah. | had a
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qui ck question. Fromthe file that 1've seen, it | ook
like there were a ot -- a good nunmber of notices that
were sent out prior to the one at issue. D d you ever
t hose notices that request for demand -- the request for

tax return?

MRS. MAIHORN: | nean, | don't know that it was
-- | nean, the different change from our house -- the
request for demand is the | ast one that you get, I|iKke,

when penalties apply when there is a request for filing.
The only thing that | recall is that there was mail that
we got to file, or that -- | don't know how it was

phr ased.

The tax did not cone in yet, the tax report for
certain year, and the Tax Board asked us to file taxes.
But I don't know if the demand is the |ast one that you
get before it applies. At least | don't recall it.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHO  So the ones that

|"mactually referring to are the 2010 t hrough 2014 tax

a

years. They were sent, | believe, in 2012 through 2015 or

"16. So from 2012 through 2016, pretty nmuch al nost every

year, | think you have to be sending your requests to file

a California tax return. D d you ever receive those? Do

you renenber?
MR MAIHORN: | think we m ght have.

MRS. MAI HORN: |'"'msure we received --
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MR MAIHORN: Personally, | would have to I ook.
| don't know off the top of ny head right now Because,
like, typically again, we get certain thing. And the only
thing I recall, if anything, was, hey we didn't get your
taxes yet. Can you file your taxes? And we filed our
t axes.

And again, what we typically do is when we get
it, and it was maybe once or tw ce, just the tax request,
that we call our tax accountant. And he's like, yeah it's
fine, you know, just come in. You know, get your stuff
and then you cone in and then you file it as long as you
don't owe. That was the thing. But | don't recall that
we got into tax for demand or what you call it.

MRS. MAIHORN: Right. | think we have received
requests for our taxes, alnost |ike an automatically
generated after April 15th. Like, hey, we didn't get your
taxes, kind of a thing. To which we know, yeah, yeah, we
know. W haven't got our taxes. W 're going to get them
together. W know you owe us. And we're not going to get
penal i zed because we al ways overpay intentionally.

So we always -- and we call our tax accountant.
And we got a note, you know, fromthe governnent or the
State. They want our taxes. Ch, yeah. GCkay. W're
going to do our taxes. Geat. But there wasn't a -- in

the years previous, as far as | know, a demand where if
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you don't do this by this date, we're going to arbitrarily
draw up a nunber that we're going to say that you owe use
because you didn't pay your taxes on tinme, even though you
overpaid and we're going to have to pay you back anyway.
So, you know what |'m sayi ng?

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHO. | see. Yes.

MRS. MAIHORN: To us it seens like -- tone it
al ways seem|ike any notices froma thing that's
automatically generated. W didn't get your taxes. Do

your taxes. So people do them You us noney.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAWJUDGE CHO | see. (kay.
Thank you.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG Yes, a few
guestions. Referring to -- do you have a copy of the

exhi bits before you or no?

MR MAI HORN:  Yes.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG kay. So do you
remenber receiving the notice from FTB, dated

April 4th, 2017? And | think that's Exhibit A

MR MAIHORN: No. That's the thing. | nean,
t here was supposedly -- | think there were two, right,
that we didn't -- we didn't see, which, | think is
April -- and | only know fromthis docunent. It was

April 4 and June or sonething.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  You didn't
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recei ve either one?

MRS. MAI HORN:  No.

MR MAIHORN: That's the thing.

MRS. MAIHORN: That's why we're here.

MR MAIHORN: | got the Septenber 20th, and
that's when | nade a call in to FTB

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  Wiat did you

recei ve on Septenber 207?

MR, MAI HORN: That was the demand, right. Let ne

See.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  FTB, do you know

what they are referring to that they received on
Sept enber 20t h?

MR. KOMLCYK: | -- I'"mnot sure what they
received, but give nme a nonent to | ook

MR MAIHORN:  Yeah. There was a separate one
that was in Septenber. That was the one | was reacting

on.

MRS. MAIHORN: Are we allowed to ask if they have

record of when we called in to the State, that first call?

Do they have a transcript?

MR MAITHORN: | think it was highlighted in the
t hi ng.

MR. KOMLCYK: If you |look on Exhibit F, |

bel i eve on page 28, that is one record of their call to
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t he Franchi se Tax Board on Septenber 19, 2017.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  Ckay.

M5. MOSNIER: As far as FTB's records with
respect to any or all communications, tel ephone calls,
fromthe taxpayers, they are often but not always noted in
a log that we could I ook at, but we hadn't. | don't know
if we had checked for all of themin preparing for this
hearing. So in response to Ms. M horn's questions
whet her we have records of all of them perhaps we do, but
we woul dn't necessarily have those records with us today.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay.

MR MAIHORN: Ckay. And | can look it up too.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAWJUDGE CHO  Correct nme if I'm
wong, but it may be that -- |ooking at the comments here,
it |ooks like the demand went out on April 4th, 2017, and
then a notice of proposed assessnent went out on
June 5th, 2017. And then it says that M. Mihorn called
inregards to a Notice of Balance Due. Is it FIB's
practice to send a Notice of Balance Due two or three
nmont hs after the Notice of Assessnment goes out?

M5. MOSNIER  Yes. |If no protest is filed by the
t axpayers in response to a Notice of Assessnent, which is
a 60-day period to protest the proposed assessnent, if
none is filed, and none was filed in this case, then the

liability does becone a final liability as a matter of
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law. And our systens would just automatically generate
and send out a bill.

So perhaps that -- this notice anmobunts to that.
It could be this docunent were referring to could have
been received in Septenber. The timng would be about
right.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHO  Thank you. Does
t hat sound agreeable to you, M. Maihorn?

MR, MAIHORN: Well, | don't agree necessarily
with the 60-day that it cones into effect if you don't

know about it.

MRS. MAIHORN: | know, sweetie, but he's asking
if that sounds right. It sounds right.
MR MAITHORN: | think that's the mail 1I'm

referring to, yeah.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Thank you.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  And how | ong
have you been living at this address, (ADDRESS REDACTED) ?

MR MAI HORN:  August 2005.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  And how | ong
have you had this mail delivery problenf

MRS. MAI HORN: Al ways.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  Si nce 2005?

MRS. MAI HORN:  Yeah.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDCGE CHENG  Since 2005?
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MRS. MAI HORN:  Sure.

MR MAIHORN: We deal with it. W know how to
deal with it.

MRS. MAIHORN:.  Well, we try.

MR MAIHORN: Yeah. | nean, with this one,
obviously, it was costly.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  And subsequent

to all this, did you ever receive the April 4th, 2017,

notice?

MRS. MAIHORN:  No, not to our know edge.

MR MAI HORN:  No.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  Okay. Thank
you.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG | just have one
qui ck question. As far as the unreliability of your mai
service, how -- if you can give an estimate -- in your own
wor ds, based on your experience, how often did
correspondence go m ssi ng?

MR MAIHORN: The problemis it's hard to tel

because we get so much junk mail. | nean, | don't know
how much you guys experience of stuff that's, |ike,
random - -

MRS. MAIHORN: Every child list. So we get
i ke --

MR MAITHORN: -- mail and things. W get tw ce.
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| don't -- | do everything electronically primarily. And
so other than Christnmas cards that we get -- the New
Year's cards that we get from people, there's not much
really, you know, that is inportant that we would rely on
the mail system Again, if we know we're going to get a
check, then we know we | ook out for that, you know. And
then we can follow up with the respective people. So she
still gets residual checks. | don't know how many we
m ssed. | just don't know.

MRS. MAIHORN: Al of that is caught by the
studi os and they contact you and say you haven't cashed
t hese checks. We will reissue them

MR MAIHORN: But again, ny issue is we are set
to a standard here as an intelligent prudent business
persons, but on the other side it's not the case, right?
And again, it's okay if soneone sends it certified or |ike
there's a tracking nunber or sonething else that you know
it has been delivered. But it's |like otherw se we don't
know, right? And it's like |l am-- 1 think I'ma
responsi bl e person, and I would followup this stuff if I
have a chance to followup on these itens.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAWJUDGE DANG It's a bit
unclear to ne how unreliable your mail service is. |
mean, | don't always get ny nmail sonetinmes. But | would

say overall it's fairly reliable.
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MR, MAIHORN: And that's why -- so these here are
just four cases out of the pile. You see the dates,
basically, the notification dates on the topic because
these are the -- and this is just the daily e-mai
notification fromUSPS that's coming in, right. So I
took -- literally, I went through the -- this is Decenber
only, think. This is Decenber only. | have four cases
for Decenber only.

And again, this is not us delivered in the hills.
That is sonmeone else that's actually in Inglewod that got
delivered to us in the hills. So | don't know if ours is
worse or better than this person. A lot of people --
probably ours is worse because we are in the hills. But I
nmean, it is significant. And these are tax docunents.

So this is like three tinmes tax docunents, and
the other one is a finance statenent fromKia to soneone
el se that was delivered to us. This is not just your
random mai | that got redirected for whatever reason.

MRS. MAIHORN: This is -- but we're not in
cl osi ng?

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG |'m sorry?

MRS. MAIHORN: We're not in closing; right?

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  No.

MRS. MAIHORN: We're just answering a question?

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Yes.
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MRS. MAI HORN:  Ckay.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Thank you

MR MATHORN: So | nean it's -- the problemis we

don't know how unreliable it is.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Thank you

MR MAI HORN: Again, those are public nunbers,
obvi ousl y.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Franchi se Tax
Board, if you're prepared, you have 15 mnutes for your
presentation.

MR. KOMLCYK: Yes. Thank you.

OPENI NG STATENMENT* * *

MR. KOMLCYK: Good norning. The issue before us

today is whether Andrej and Angelita M horn have net
their burden of proof to establish reasonable cause to
nmeet the demand penalty for tax year 2015.

M. and Ms. Maihorn's argunent that they
est abl i shed reasonabl e cause to nmake the demand penalty
because they didn't receive the demand for tax return
fails, because the Franchise Tax Board's failing of the
demand to the taxpayers | ast known address is sufficient
notification, whether or not they actually receive the

noti ce.

In this case, the Franchise Tax Board mail ed the
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demand to M. and Ms. Mihorn's | ast known address, and
the notice was not returned. M. and Ms. Mihorn's
argunent that they filed a tax return also fails because
the demand penalty is inposed when a taxpayer doesn't
respond to the due dates set forth in the demand.

In this case, M. and Ms. Maihorn filed a tax
return over six nonths after the deadline set by the
demand. Finally, M. and Ms. Miihorn's argunent that
they did not have a tax liability also fails, because
their belief that they didn't owe any taxes or are
entitled to a refund is not reasonabl e cause.

So accordingly, M. And Ms. Mi horn have failed
to neet their burden of proof to establish reasonabl e
cause to neet their demand penalty. The Franchi se Tax
Board' s action nust be sustained. Thank you.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Thank you. Any
questions fromthe panel ?

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHENG  No.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE CHO  No.

M5. MOSNIER | think it's inportant to note that
t he purpose of the demand penalty is to ensure that
taxpayers tinely report their tax obligations to the
State. Because just as a formof governnment, that's what
the government relies on as a State when it is formng its

budget, because it knows how much is comng in. And
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that's why this penalty is harsh
That's why the legislature determned that it
woul d not give taxpayers credit the amounts they paid in

for purposes of calculating the penalty. 1It's the

| egislature's determnation that it's really inportant for

t axpayers to get returns filed on tinme. And that's why

t he hammer seens so heavy here.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Thank you

Does that conclude your presentation, Franchise Tax Board?

MR KOMLCYK: Yes.
ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  You have five

m nutes in rebuttal

CLOSI NG STATEMENT* * *

MR. MAI HORN:  Yeah. Just really quick. | nean,
the credit, again, | don't think |I agree since we overpay.
So | don't know that we get a credit. It's actually the

opposite. It's probably the opposite. And | think,
agai n, you have the docunent. | outlined it in the
previous discussion. | think there's a clear reasonable
cause, and | went through every single point. It was

highlighted if -- how we could have acted defectively.

Agai n, just not know ng what you don't know nmakes

it hard to act on sonething. W did react once we knew.

| don't think that any ordinarily intelligent and prudent
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busi ness person could have been done anything differently
based on the points that were highlighted here. And, you
know, it is what it is.

MRS. MAIHORN: | also think that, you know,
certainly | understand that the State wants to nmake sure
t hat they know for their budget next year how much they
have goi ng out or what they have comng in. So the
concept of what they have coming in, if people haven't
paid their taxes they fine themheavily; like, really
heavily if you haven't paid your taxes.

But to say, well, you overpaid your taxes, SO
we're going to fine you for not doing it on tine is also
frustrating as a side note to whether we have reasonabl e
cause or not, | realize. But | think going forward it's
inmportant to note that even if we had plan an extension,
which we'll probably always have to have an extension
even that would be in Cctober

And the note we didn't get, you know, the Apri
and June notes, like, they gave us, |like, 60-days or, you
know, for whatever it was. Even then our taxes stil
woul dn't have been filed until COctober or so. The point
is we still would have to get all of the docunents
together. W will continue to try and get themfrom here
on out, like, certainly as nuch as we can.

| don't have all of ny stuff for this year yet,
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but you better believe I"'mgoing to try and, |ike, get

them even if they say, well, we're not going to send them
yet. And I'll have to wait for themto send them You
know, we'll go through this whol e process again and again,

but we will be on it is nmuch as we can. And we will file
extensions if they want to know so that they can give us
our noney back at a reasonable tine, whatever.

It's just | still don't understand the concept
t hat when we have to file something, we file it with
certified mail or UPS or FedEx. But if it's going to
State or if it's going to the governnment, we do it with
certified mail to make sure we know it was received
because it's inportant. When you' re taking noney away
from soneone or you're giving noney to sonebody el se, that
shoul d be certified.

|f the original note was the issue, okay. Maybe
we didn't get the first issue. But the seconds notice
where they say we're going to take these taxes from you,
we're going to keep your noney that you overpaid if you
don't respond to us, and then they don't hear anything
fromus, and they just say, well | guess they are ignoring
us, is really not fair. And it's not okay to just
reasonably assune that we probably got it, and we didn't
pay attention to it.

Because when we did get the notice in Septenber,
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we acted on it imrediately, which the records of the phone
calls states. We wouldn't have just ignored it. And
think that maybe there needs to be a | aw passed. Maybe |
need to go collect signatures outside of the supermarket
to pass a law that if you have a governnent, a state
government, or otherwi se that's going to take noney from
you, and they just sent you a letter saying we're going to
doit, it should be certified to nmake sure that they
really know it got to the person that it was supposed to
be delivered to.

That's it.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG M. Mai horn, do
you have anything further?

MR MAIHORN: |'m good. Thanks.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Ckay. Thank you
everyone, for their presentations. The record in this
case is now closed, and this wll be submtted for
deci sion. The panel nenbers will nmeet and will deliberate
over what has been said today as well as the evidentiary
record in reaching our decision. W wll| endeavor to have
a witten decision to you within 100 days, both parties.

MRS. MAI HORN:  Thank you.

MR, MAI HORN:  Thank you.

ADM NI STRATI VE LAW JUDGE DANG  Thank you

everyone. This hearing is now adj our ned.
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(Proceedi ngs adjourned at 11:36 a.m)

California Reporting, LLC
(510) 313-0610

43




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

HEARI NG REPORTER S CERTI FI CATE

|, Ernalyn M Al onzo, Hearing Reporter in and for
the State of California, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing transcript of proceedi ngs was
taken before ne at the tine and place set forth, that the
testi nony and proceedi ngs were reported stenographically
by me and later transcribed by conputer-aided
transcription under ny direction and supervision, that the
foregoing is a true record of the testinony and
proceedi ngs taken at that tine.

| further certify that | amin no way interested
in the outcone of said action

| have hereunto subscribed ny nane this 15th day

of March, 2019

ERNALYN M ALONZO
HEARI NG REPORTER
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